

Nam Shan Yuen Residents Handbook

For the exclusive use of Taught Postgraduate Student (TPg) Residents

Version: 10.0 (10th Issue) Issued Date: August 2024

Contents

Intro	Introduction			
Nam	Shan Yuen	. 3		
The	The House Rules			
1.	Application, Admission and Allocation	.4		
2.	Safety, Security and Health	. 4		
3.	Visitors	. 6		
4.	Smoke-free Environment	. 7		
5.	Gambling	.7		
6.	Cleanliness	.7		
7.	Properties	.7		
8.	Living Environment	.7		
9.	Refuse Disposal			
10.	Repair and Maintenance			
11.	Use of University Facilities and Appliances	. 9		
12.	Additions and Alterations			
13.	Display of Notice or Sign			
14.	Inspection of Premises for Repair and Improvement Works			
15.	Fire and Safety			
16.	Car Parking			
17.	Common Room			
18.	Use of Common Areas			
19.	Landscaped Gardens			
20.	Playground			
21.	Laundry Facility			
22.	Maintenance of Windows			
23.	Disciplinary Action	12		
Usef	ul Information	13		
24.	Management Services Counter	13		
25.	Handover of Flat	13		
26.	Long Vacation Arrangements			
27.	Utility and Payment			
28.	Electricity Supply			
29.	Use of Electrical Appliances			
30.	Use of Gas Appliances			
31.	Use of Fresh and Flushing Water			
32.	Pest Control			
33.	Control of Mosquito Breeding			
34.	Recycling Practice			
35.	Energy Saving			
36.	Typhoon and Rainstorm	17		
Usef	ul Telephone Numbers	18		

Introduction

City University of Hong Kong (CityUHK) is one of the government-funded institutions providing quality higher education to local and overseas students at undergraduate and postgraduate levels. She also contributes to the advancement of knowledge and offers access to her human, physical and technological resources for the benefit of the society.

To carry out her mission, the University has employed a strong team of experienced academic and administrative staff with diversified research interest and professional expertise.

This handbook is prepared with the intention to provide CityUHK Taught Postgraduate Students of CityUHK premises with the house rules so that they know what to observe and with the basic information so that they know where assistance could be obtained when needed.

This handbook shall be read in conjunction with the any Licence Agreement signed between the University and the Licensee.

The Facilities Management Office wishes all residents a happy stay in CityUHK accommodations.

Nam Shan Yuen

Nam Shan Yuen is located at 23 Nam Shan Chuen Road, Kowloon.

It comprises 2 residential blocks with 54 units and is under the management of the Facilities Management Office (FMO) of the University.

The Estate was built in 1995 on a site of about 4,900m² with spacious and relaxing outdoor environment.





1. Application, Admission and Allocation

- 1.1 Application for a place in Nam Shan Yuen should be made in the manner prescribed by the University. All information provided in the application must be true and accurate.
- 1.2 Student Residence Office will conduct vetting on the applications at any time of the year. Applicants will be required to provide documentary proofs to verify the information submitted on the web. Submission of inaccurate information or failure to submit information during the vetting period will lead to immediate disqualification and removal from the premises, and their applications will not be accepted throughout their entire study period. All fees paid will not be refunded. Serious cases will be subject to further disciplinary actions, which may affect the opportunities for award, scholarship, exchange or internship.
- 1.3 Upon acceptance of an offer of a place, resident is required to pay a non-refundable and non-transferrable fee and a refundable deposit in the amount and at such time as stipulated by the University.
- 1.4 The premises is offered to students of the same gender.
- 1.5 The period of stay is non-extendable. Resident is required to vacate his/her room immediately upon the expiry of the assigned period. Resident will also be required to vacate his/her rooms upon suspension, termination, leave of absence, study interruption, withdrawal, change of funding source and completion of their studies, visa expired, exchange programmes or any cases that result in inactive / part-time student status. Extension of stay may be granted at the University's discretion on a case-by-case basis.

2. Safety, Security and Health

- 2.1 Resident must comply with the rules concerning safety and security and refrain from behavior that may pose a safety or health hazard to others.
- 2.2 Resident is responsible for safekeeping his/her personal valuable items at all times in the premises. The University shall not be responsible for any loss of or damage to any articles or things brought into the premises by the resident.

- 2.3 Resident shall permit the authorized University staff (including outsourced ones) to use resident's data for official purposes and enter the premises for legitimate reasons with or without prior notice and whenever necessary for upholding safety and security, cleaning/repair works, enforcing the University's Regulations and Rules, as well as for the orderly operation of the premises.
- 2.4 Additional equipment or objects brought into the premises by the resident or his/her visitors will be subject to scrutiny by the duty staff of the Management Services Counter. The University reserves the right to remove any of these items that may pose a safety, health or environmental hazard to the other residents.
- 2.5 Pets of any form are prohibited in the premises for hygiene and community health.
- 2.6 All accidents and irregularities should be reported to the duty staff of the Management Services Counter immediately.
- 2.7 Unauthorized photo, video or audio recording of any residents in the premises and in the common areas of Nam Shan Yuen is prohibited.
- 2.8 Excessive drinking leading to misbehavior or disturbance to others, including visible intoxication in the premises, is prohibited.
- 2.9 Lending, borrowing, or any other misuse of the resident's access cards or other documents to gain access to the premises is prohibited.
- 2.10 For security concern, opening hours of the main entrance gate are from 07:00 to 23:00 hours. Vehicles without valid parking permits issued by the University (including delivery vehicles and taxi) are not allowed to enter the Estate beyond the above time.
- 2.11 For security reasons and to prevent trespassing, visitors, contractors, workers will be checked and registered by the security guards while entering the Estate. The University reserves the right not to allow any personnel from entering into the Estate.
- 2.12 The Security House situated at the main entrance are 24-hours operated and coupled with modern building automation system. The security guards are responsible for the security and regular patrol to the Estate under the supervision of the Management Services Counter.

- 2.13 Each block is installed with Access Control for security purpose which comprises an Entrance Panel at the entrance to each block. For access control, residents can use their staff / student identity cards to get access to the G/F main entrance door.
- 2.14 All residents are required to fill in the "Information Form" for using the access control.
- 2.15 Do regularly check and repair any defective facilities such as doors, windows, sanitary fittings, electrical installations etc. in order to ensure the safety and its normal function.
- 2.16 Do take all reasonable precautions to protect the interior of the premises against damage by storm, typhoon, heavy rainfall or the like and in particular to ensure that all doors, windows are securely fastened upon the threat or advance of such weather conditions.
- 2.17 Each flat is provided with window grilles. In the interest of safety, residents are advised to lock the window grilles at all times.
- 2.18 Residents shall report to the Management Services Counter when they spot any suspicious persons around their premises.

3. Visitors

- 3.1 Resident may invite individual visitors to the premises he/she reside in. Each resident can register up to 2 visitors at one time.
- 3.2 The visiting hours are from 8 am to 11 pm. Visitors are not allowed to stay in the premises overnight. Resident has to accompany visitors at all times and be responsible for their behavior in the premises. Each visitor must be accompanied by the resident to register at the Management Services Counter upon entering the premises, and must be accompanied by the resident during check-out upon leaving.
- 3.3 Resident must confirm that the visitors have left the premises and completed the check-out procedures regardless of the time of the day. The resident who fails to do so will be subject to disciplinary action.
- 3.4 Prior written approval must be obtained from the University if resident intends to arrange a visit from an external organization or the media.
- 3.5 Resident or visitors are not allowed to enter a room without the prior consent of the room occupant in the case of a single room, and of both occupants in the case of a shared room.

4. Smoke-free Environment

The University is a smoke-free campus. Due to the enactment of the Smoking (Public Health) (Amendment) Ordinance 2021, smoking on campus is an offence in law and smoking of whatever form is strictly forbidden in any part of the premises. Given its greater hazard to the community, waterpipe smoking will be subject to severer penalty than tobacco and vape.

5. Gambling

Gambling, playing mahjong, and possessing any equipment for gambling or playing mahjong and betting in any form is not allowed in the premises.

6. Cleanliness

- 6.1 Licensee should keep all parts of the premises, including their own rooms, clean and tidy.
- 6.2 Creating unclean, unsanitary, or untidy conditions in the premises in Nam Shan Yuen is prohibited.

7. **Properties**

Resident should keep all facilities, furniture and equipment in the premises in good order. No furniture or equipment may be removed without prior approval from the University. Resident must not interfere or tamper with existing fittings or fixtures of the premises, including the wiring smart-meters of air-conditioners and washing machines. Resident will be subject to criminal prosecution and/or disciplinary hearing, and required to compensate the University for any loss or damage caused to property in the premises as a result of the deliberate acts or negligence of the Licensee or his/her visitors.

8. Living Environment

8.1 In order to preserve a pleasant living environment to all, residents should be considerate and observe all statutory regulations. They should help keep the Estate clean and refrain from making excessive noise such as playing musical instrument, turning on visual and audio equipment loudly or other noisy activities which may cause nuisance or annoyance to the neighbouring residents especially between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. Offenders are reminded that they may be liable for prosecution under the Laws of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR).

- 8.2 The offenders shall be held responsible for indemnifying the University against all claims, demands, actions and legal proceedings whatever made upon the University by the HKSAR for committing an offence due to any noise or activities which are a source of annoyance to any person caused by the offenders.
- 8.3 Residents should refrain from doing any act or behaviour which may cause nuisance or injury or danger to health of other residents in the estate.
- 8.4 In order to maintain a tranquil environment at night, taxis are not allowed to enter into the Estate between 23:00 to 07:00 hours under normal circumstances.

9. Refuse Disposal

- 9.1 Be considerate and do not throw or drop any rubbish, waste and other articles out of the windows or in common areas.
- 9.2 Do always keep the premises in good sanitary condition. All domestic refuse should be put in sealed bags and disposed of into the refuse chute or place inside the hopper room properly. No combustible or flammable materials or large items should be dropped into the refuse chute or inside the hopper room. Normally, domestic refuse will be collected from the hopper rooms at about 07:30 hours daily.
- 9.3 Large unwanted items such as used furniture and electrical appliances should be properly disposed of and dumped into the main refuse chamber opposite to the Security House at the Estate entrance.
- 9.4 The University encourages separating waste for re-cycling purpose. Please refer to Clause 34 "Recycling Practice" for details.

10. Repair and Maintenance

- 10.1 Residents shall have a duty and responsibility to look after their premises. They are required to report any defects occurred within their premises to the Management Services Counter.
- 10.2 Any request for repair and maintenance work in quarters should be forwarded to the Management Services Counter. Residents are also encouraged to report to the Management Services Counter any damages at common areas.

- 10.3 Residents are responsible for the maintenance of the interior of their premises including the flooring, doors, windows, ceiling, walls, fixtures, fittings and apparatuses in good, clean and proper repair and working condition throughout the licensing period, they are required to report any repair / service required to Management Services Counter for arranging repairs.
- 10.4 To avoid blockage of soil pipes and drains, residents are reminded not to throw any refuse, leftovers, rags, sanitary towels or other insoluble articles into the water closets. It is extremely inconsiderate to flush sanitary towels into water closets as these towels will block the soil pipes and drains causing great inconvenience and hygiene hazards. Residents will be held responsible for the repair and all associated cost.

11. Use of University Facilities and Appliances

- 11.1 Residents are required to take good care of the University facilities and appliances and use them in a proper manner not to cause nuisance or injury or danger to health of other residents in the estate.
- 11.2 Residents will be held responsible for any missed or damage of University facilities and appliances caused by them.

12. Additions and Alterations

- 12.1 No addition and alteration work to the fixture, fittings, utilities or any parts inside the premises are allowed without written approval from the Director of Facilities Management.
- 12.2 Residents are responsible for making good and reinstating the premises to their original state upon vacating their premises.

13. Display of Notice or Sign

- 13.1 Residents are required to contact the duty staff of the Management Services Counter for prior approval should they wish to display any notice on Notice Board of the building.
- 13.2 Residents are not allowed to hang or display any sign, banner or advertisement on or outside windows and balcony, exterior of the building and other common areas.

14. Inspection of Premises for Repair and Improvement Works

The University reserves the right to conduct inspection of accommodation at reasonable intervals and to carry out any repair or improvement works of building facilities inside the premises upon serving prior notice to the resident. Resident must, however, render assistance and facilitate the carrying out of such inspection, repair or improvement works.

15. Fire and Safety

- 15.1 Do not keep or store hazardous, flammable or unlawful goods in the premises.
- 15.2 In order to avoid fire accidents and to keep the Estate clean and tidy, placing shrines at door entrances and burning of joss sticks and any articles for worshipping in common areas are strictly prohibited.
- 15.3 Do not overload individual socket outlet at any one time as fire can be caused by overloading electrical wiring and fittings.
- 15.4 Passageways, staircases, lift lobbies etc. must not be obstructed at any time.
- 15.5 Residents should not jam open any fire doors or interfere with any fire services equipment and installation or impede their proper functioning.

16. Car Parking

Parking facilities are not provided for TPg residents.

17. Common Room

The Common Room located on Ground Floor of Block 2 is available for residents' use. Booking for this room can be arranged at the Security House on a first-come first-served basis.

18. Use of Common Areas

- 18.1 Be considerate and do not paint, write or paste posters on walls and floors in any common areas.
- 18.2 Avoid doing anything which may cause damage to building elements and common facilities. Residents will be held responsible for the repair costs of any wilful damage to any part of the building.

- 18.3 For the sake of safety and security, residents are not allowed to enter and use the roof areas for laundry and other activities.
- 18.4 In order to maintain a tidy appearance of the Estate, display or erection of radio or television aerials, awning, signs, flower boxes, etc. in any parts of the exterior of the building or common areas is strictly prohibited.
- 18.5 Do not place or store any goods such as bicycles, furniture etc. in lift lobbies, staircases, landings or any other common areas. Blocking fire escape routes is an offence to law.
- 18.6 Sleeping and airing of clothes in common areas are not permitted. Residents are advised to dress properly in common areas.

19. Landscaped Gardens

- 19.1 The landscaped gardens inside the Estate are designed for the enjoyment of all residents.
- 19.2 Do keep the area clean and do not paint, write or paste posters on any trees in the Estate.
- 19.3 Do not pick or damage the plants and trees. Persons found damaging the plants and trees inside the Estate will be required to pay for their replacement.
- 19.4 Residents are advised to report to the Management Services Counter or Security House should they find any irregularities of trees and plants.

20. Playground

Located at Ground Floor of Block 2. For safety reason, playing ball games, bicycles, roller-skating or any games that may endanger passers-by and damage properties are strictly prohibited in the playing areas and other common areas including the carpark.

21. Laundry Facility

21.1 Laundry rack is available in the utility room of each flat. Residents are not allowed to relocate the laundry rack and are advised to make use of the laundry rack for hanging or drying clothes and beddings.

- 21.2 Hanging or drying clothes, beddings and the like on the balcony railings, windows or alongside the exterior of the building and other common areas is unsightly and inconsistent with the image which the University desires to maintain and is not allowed.
- 21.3 For the sake of public health, please clear your laundry items from the washing machine as soon as possible and restrict from washing all shoes via the washing machine from time to time.

22. Maintenance of Windows

- 22.1 Standard aluminium window grilles and mosquito screens are provided in each flat. Residents are not allowed to change the pattern of window grilles and mosquito screens.
- 22.2 The window frames are made of anodised aluminium. This surface does not require any further treatment or painting. Residents are advised to clean the windows and frames with mild detergents and not to use Brasso or other similar harsh cleaners as this will cause damage to the surface of the frames.
- 22.3 For safety concern, residents should make regular check and maintenance of the windows. Any defective window hinges and parts should be repaired or replaced immediately.

23. Disciplinary Action

For any suspected case for violation of aforementioned House Rules, the Director of Facilities Management of the University is empowered to exercise his/her due judgement on interpretation of the House Rules (including situations outside the scope of the House Rules as a reasonable man) to levy due penalties for the orderly operation of the premises with full consideration and justifications to the composite factors, including circumstantial evidence and findings, totality and gravity of the misconduct, nature and occurrence(s) of offence as well as the resident's attitude.

24. Management Services Counter

The Management Services Counter located on Ground Floor of Block 2 is responsible for daily management of the Estate. The duty staff at the Management Services Counter will offer assistance and deal with enquiries from residents during normal office hours from 08:20 to 17:15 hours, Mondays to Fridays. Residents may approach the Security House at 3442 3010 beyond office hours.

25. Handover of Flat

25.1 Moving in

New residents are required to complete moving-in formalities and collect door keys from the duty staff at the Management Services Counter. Brief introduction on the use of essential facilities of the premises will be conducted by the duty staff upon moving in. Residents are advised to keep good custody of door keys at all times.

25.2 Moving out

Residents shall make advance appointment with the duty staff of the Management Services Counter for moving-out formalities and return all door keys including the parking permit (if any). Inspection of the premises and recording of the utility readings will be done by the duty staff of the Management Services Counter. They are required to remove their own belongings and are responsible for any loss and damaged items of the University.

Residents are reminded to apply for change of address with the Post Office and close or transfer all services accounts such as telephone line, Cable TV / NOW TV (if any) etc. for their premises before moving out.

26. Long Vacation Arrangements

For residents who are on long vacation and will not therefore be occupying their premises for a long period of time, they are requested to make suitable preparations where appropriate prior to their departure:

- 26.1 Make arrangement for payment of utility bills which may fall due during the period of vacation to avoid non-payment which could lead to disconnection of supply. If a disconnection occurs, the residents concerned will have to arrange for the subsequent re-connection and pay for any associated charges.
- 26.2 Valuable articles/belongings should be properly locked and if deemed appropriately insured. The University will not be responsible for any loss. Avoid ordering items locally and overseas.
- 26.3 Turn off all fresh, flushing and towngas valves inside their premises before leaving.
- 26.4 Please inform the Management Services Counter of the name, address and contact telephone number of the person who is holding the main door and room keys during your absence from Hong Kong so that entry to the premises can be made possible in case of emergency.
- 26.5 Persons holding the keys are advised to make regular visits to the premises to:
 - report on any urgent need of repair; and
 - report to the Management Services Counter of any irregularities.

27. Utility and Payment

- 27.1 Each flat is equipped with basic utility services such as water, electricity and gas.
- 27.2 The account name of the utility meters (water, electricity and gas) is "City University of Hong Kong". Residents are not required to deal with the transfer of account name.
- 27.3 Apart from the full settlement of license fees and deposit, residents shall settle utility bills of their premises with utility companies directly. Late payment will incur additional charges by utility companies.
- 27.4 Failure to settle the utility bills may lead to disconnection of the said services by utility companies. Residents will be held responsible for paying for the re-connection of the services.
- 27.5 Residents are required to settle all outstanding bills before the handover of the premises to the University.

28. Electricity Supply

- 28.1 The distribution board is fitted with a Residual Current Device (RCD) to provide protection against electric shock. This device will react to the use of any faulty electrical appliance by cutting off the supply.
- 28.2 If a circuit in the flat is tripped, it will be necessary to reset the device manually. The duty staff of the Management Services Counter will show the new residents how to reactivate the device upon their moving in. But before doing so, make sure that all appliances which are connected to the same circuit have been disconnected.
- 28.3 If the device continues to cut off the electricity supply, please contact the duty staff of Management Services Counter or the security guards at Security House for assistance.

29. Use of Electrical Appliances

- 29.1 Standard 13A power socket outlets are provided in all rooms of each flat. Residents are advised not to overload individual socket outlet at any one time.
- 29.2 In the interest of safety, residents should ensure all electrical appliances are in good condition and replace any wires or plugs of their appliances which show signs of wear.
- 29.3 Under the statutory requirement, all electrical wiring, fixing and installation work must be done by licensed electricians.
- 29.4 Window type or split type air-conditioning units are installed in each flat. Licensees are responsible for the checking and repair at their own expenses.
- 29.5 Residents are advised to clean the filters of air-conditioning units and the exhaust fans at regular intervals to maintain its efficiency.

30. Use of Gas Appliances

- 30.1 Gas appliances including water heaters and cooker with oven are provided in the shower room and kitchen respectively.
- 30.2 In case of malfunction of the appliances, residents should contact the gas company immediately for checking and repair. For safe use of gas appliances, residents shall refer to instructions given on the heaters or cooker and are reminded to turn off the gas appliances after use or before leaving the premises.

- 30.3 When you suspect a gas leak, please keep calm and refer to the following advice:
 - Do not tamper with the switch of any electrical appliances such as air-conditioning units, lights, fans etc. as this could cause an explosion.
 - Turn off the main supply immediately at the gas meter located in kitchen by closing the meter control valve.
 - Leave all windows and doors open.
 - Do not press the door bell of adjacent flats.
 - Call the gas company for checking.
 - Contact the duty staff of Management Services Counter or the security guards at Security House for assistance.

31. Use of Fresh and Flushing Water

- 31.1 Tap water is not disinfected and should be boiled before drinking.
- 31.2 The flushing water should only be used in the water closets.
- 31.3 If water leakage is found in the flat, residents should turn off the main valve and arrange repair immediately. Please check that taps are turned off before leaving the premises.
- 31.4 The duty staff of Management Services Counter will show the main fresh and flush water valves inside the premises to the new residents during their moving in.

32. Pest Control

- 32.1 A pest control specialist has been appointed to carry out regular pest control work in all common areas.
- 32.2 Residents have to make arrangement for pest control of their premises at their own expense if needed. They are reminded not to cause any nuisance or injury or danger to health of other residents in the estate during the course of pest control.

33. Control of Mosquito Breeding

- 33.1 The Management Services Counter will carry out regular clearance of stagnant water and grass cutting in common areas in order to control mosquito breeding.
- 33.2 Residents are advised to change water for flowers and plants at least once a week and to remove stagnant water in containers like vases, flower pots and buckets to eliminate mosquitoes breeding.

34. Recycling Practice

The University always endeavours to promote environmental protection. Nowadays, waste recycling has become a common practice of the University community. Residents are encouraged to participate in this meaningful activity. To facilitate the recycling practice, there are various sets of recycle bins available in carpark areas for recycling of plastic bottles, aluminum cans and waste paper. Residents are also welcome raise their suggestions to the Management Services Counter on improving the recycling practice in the Estate.

35. Energy Saving

In order to protect the environment, residents are advised to use energy saving lamps / electrical appliances and turn off any unused lightings and electrical appliances before leaving their premises.

36. Typhoon and Rainstorm

Typhoon season in Hong Kong is normally from June to October every year. Typhoon signals range from No. 1 to 10. When there is a typhoon or rainstorm warning signal, residents are required to take necessary precautions and make sure all windows are closed. Beware of personal safety and stay tuned on the announcements of Hong Kong Observatory at <u>www.hko.gov.hk</u>

Useful Telephone Numbers			
Emergency for Police, Ambulance and Fire Services	999		
Water Supplies Department	2824 5000		
CLP Power Hong Kong Ltd.	2678 2678		
Towngas Enterprise Ltd.	2880 6988		
PCCW Customer Service Hotline	1000		
Nam Shan Yuen Management Services Counter	3442 3009		
Security House at Nam Shan Yuen Main Entrance	3442 3010		
University Security Hotline	3442 8888		

This Handbook is subject to continuous revision. The University reserves the right to review, update or amend the rules as she thinks appropriate without notice.